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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 Decermber 2014

2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
Note 000 $000 300G $'000
Revenue lrom operating activilies 2 636,171 648,176 .
Gther reveriue and gome 2 23,702 28,017 6,560 5605
Total revenue and other income 658,874 677,193 6,500 5,805
Expenses from operations before finance costs 3 {559,583) {562,190} {295) 131)
Impairment of intangible asaets 1t {7,239)
Changa in fair value of financial instrument s 20,531 {3,787} . .
feversal of impaiment/{impairment) of investment in subsidiary : 28,7119 {28,193
Mpance cosis B 3 26,6373 125,978 {39.855) 130,577
Prafificss belore income tax expance 87,548 85,228 {4,831} 8,720
licome Lax (expenseifonedit e 5 136416} (27 036) 4,573 UREse
Profitiloss) for the year 51,130 58,000 4,742 (84,056
Profiv{loss) for the year is attributable to:
Qwners of the parent enlity 27478 4,742 (54,056)
SR Ry €tliate i gt [P ALS 13 . e e AR e
58,000 4,742 154,058)

Profilf{toss} for the year

The above slatements should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes
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VWILSON & HORTON LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for year ended 31 December 2014

tiote 2014 2013 2614 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
$'000 3000 5'300 5060
Profiti(foss) for the year 51,130 58,060 4,742 {54,056}
QOther comprehensive losses
ltems that may bs reclassified to profif or loss
Exchange differences on tanslation of foreign opuralions 17 (4,794) {74.023}
Hams that will not be reclassified (o profil or oss
Revaluation of frechold land and buildings 17 156
_Exchange and other difforencas appheable o nen-contreiling interests (2,263) (23,158) -
Other comprehensive tosses, net of tax (12,801} {87,162) -
Tatal comprehensive incomel{ioss) 36,229 (39,182) 4,742 {44,0553
Totai comprehensive incomalf(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent entity 26,555 (48,847} 4,742 [54,058)
_Hon-qontraihng rdsreis e R ) | HiEve [
38,229 (38,182} 4,742 (54,066)

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles.
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

BALANCE SHEETS
as at 31 December 2014

2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Paront Patent
Nate 5000 3060 $'000 $'000
Currant assefs
Cash and cash equivalents 22 16,367 8,557 189 4
Trade and other recaivables & 349,411 473,673 515,668 588,558
Iavenlories 7 2322 3121 - .
Tax reeelvable 1,798 -
Assets classHied as held for sale i - 788 .
Total current assets 369,858 486,138 515,867 588,562
Won-current assets
QOther financial assets ] 132,370 111,691 602,565 573,846
Praperty, plant and equipment 10 81,503 160,797 E
Intangible assats 11 509,046 512,900 - .
Dalerred tax assets i2 36,371 721,808 84,319 73377
Tolal non-current assots 771,290 747.396 683,684 647,223
Total assots 1,141,188 1,233,635 1,195,751 1,235,785
Currant liabilities
Payables 13 280,188 242,693 809,039 859,263
Interast bearing iabilities i4 1,722 31,414 - 29,870
Currant 1ax provision 1,482 8,322 .
Provisions i5 11,008 12,154
Lipbilitios direcily associaled with assels classified as held for sals 8 - 3,132 -
Total current liabllities 294,440 297,715 808,03% 889,133
Non-currant Hakilftics
Interest bearing liabilllies 14 221,257 168,225 220,000 68,320
Deforred tax Babilities 12 33,527 - - -
Provislons 15 - 445 = i
Total non-current llabilities 254,784 169,670 220,000 68,328
Total liabilities 549,194 467,385 1,023,039 857 461
Net assets 591,904 766,150 176,712 278,324
EQUITY
Contributed equity 16 360,363 484,342 360,263 484,342
Reserves 17 (38,616} {47,206} -
Relained profitsf{eccumulated losses) 17 79,511 35277 (189,651) {206,018)
Total parent entity interest 401,258 472,323 176,712 278,324
Non-contreliing Interests 17 190,735 283,827 B .
Totai equlity 561,954 786,150 176,712 278,324
The above slalemants should be read in canjunction with the accompanying noles.
5
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Attrihutabls to owners of porent entity

& Mote  Contributed Reserves Retained Total Mon- Total
roup . :
equity profils cantrofling
inferests Equity
S'000 $'000 $'000 $500 5000
Balance a1 1 January 2013 484 342 19,770 15,058 519,170 313,936 833,106
Profit for the year . 27,178 27,178 30,824 58,000
Other corprehensive income (74,0721 {74,023} (23,158) (97,162)
Total comprebensive income (74,023} 27176 146,847} 7.665 (39,182)
Transfers wilhin equity 17 6,957 {5,957)
Enuity transactions with nen-controfling
intarests 17 - {27,774) (27,774)
Balance at 31 December 2013 44,342 {47,296} 35,277 472,323 293,827 766,150
Balance at 7 Jonuary 2014 484,342 (47,296} 36,277 472,323 293,527 766,150
Prafit for the year 21,188 31,185 10,035 51,130
Ciher comprehensive incoime (4,638) (4.638) {5,263) {12,501}
Towal comprehensive income (4,63 21,705 25,557 11677 38,229
Return of contributed aquity to
shareholders 18 (123,979} 11.625 (112,354 {i12,354)
Transiers within eguity 17 (1.414) 1414
Equity transactions with noa-sontralling
interests® 17 14,732 14,732 (114,763)  (100,851)
Balance at 31 December 2014 360,363 (38,618} 79.511 401,259 190,736 581,994
Contribuled Accurnulated Total
Parent equity lnsses Equity
5000 000 3000
Balence at 1 January 2013 484 342 {131,852) 332,385
Total comprehensive income (54,058) (54,056}
Balanee at 31 December 2013 484,342 {208,018} 278,324
Balance at 1 January 20#4 484,342 [206.018] 276,324
Total comprehensive income 4,742 4,742
Return of contributed equity to :
shareholders 16 {123,97%) 11,626  (112,354)
Balance at 31 December 2014 360.363 {189,651) 170,712

1 This relastes primarily lo the purchase by the Leve! 3 Partnership of a A5140.1m {NZ%151 3m) debenture issued by Tibbar

Broadeasting Ply Limiled, a subsidiary of the ullimate parent. The issue of the debenture was associaled wilh the acquisition of the
G0% of Australian Radio Netwerk (ARN} and the Radie Network (TRN) thal APN News & Media Limited, the ultimate parent entity, did
not atready own. As patl of the purchase, 3 A561.9m loan {NZ364 9m) held by ARN with the previous shareholder was settled, The
investment in the debeniure provided Wilson & Horlan Limiled with an additional 26. 8% economic interest in ARN and TRN, resulting
in & decrease in non-controlling interest of $163.7m and an increase o aquily attribulable to the owners of the parent of $14.7m.

Refer to Nole 26{c) for further delzils

The above stelements should be read in coninction with the accompanying notes.




WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Note

Cash flows from operaling aclivities
Receipls from cuslomers

Payments 1o suppliers and employoes
Dividends received

Interest received

Inlerest paid

22

tet cash inflowsf{outflows) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Paymenis for oropery, plant and equipment
Payments for intangible asscts including soffware
Anqulsition of conlralled eniities

Proceeds from sale of properly, plant end equipment
Hi i "

T

Viunesds bom

Mot cash outflows from investing acthvities

Cas flows from finzncing activities
lL.oang advancedirepaid by ralaled partics
Proceeds from borowings

Repayments of borrowings

Return of contribiied equily to shareholders
Procesds from Partnership contribution

3y nis 12 non Controiing micreots B

16

et cash inflows{outliows) frem financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalonts

Cash and cash equivelents at beginning of iha vear
EHect of exchange rale changes

b

i
)

Cash znd cash equivalents at end of the year

2014 2013 2018 2013
Brougp Group Parent Parent
5000 5’000 3000 $'000
719,123 748,248 - -
(513,968} (823411} (345} (62)
2,037 3,485 -
5,859 6,130 12 -
(18,522} {20,370) {10,300) {10,977)
Ay RO o
75,706 92,031 (10,637) (11,039}
{(11,624) {12,461}
(12,757 (2.274)
(5.251)
4,293 2,837
2 X -
{17,523} {#5,712} - -
143,475 9,274 {63,164} 57,780
379,600 67,000 379,000 67,000
(359,814} {120,844} {253,370}  {113.751)
{46,634} {46,634}
3,026 -
__4168,16%; A S
{50,216) (74.313) 10,832 11,039
B,041 2,007 195
8,557 6,780 4 4
{231) {234)
6,367 8,557 199 4

The above slalements shoulc be raad in corjuncion with the accompanying noles




WILSON & BORTON LEITED

MOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 Becember 2074

GENERAL INFORMATIGN
Wilson & Horton Limited (the Company”) and ils subsidiaries’ {logether “the Group”) principal activities during the financlal year were
the puklishing of newspapars and magazines, commercial printing, radic broadcasting in New Zealand and Austealia and the

operation of onling businesses.

These Group and parent financlal stalements {colieclively "financial stalements”) were approved for issua by Ihe Board of Directors
on 12 August 2015

1, SUMMARY QF SIGRIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES

The principzl accousling policies adopled in the preparation of the krancial stalements are sal oul beolow. These polities have been
consistently apgiied 1o all the years presented, unless ofherwise stated. The financial siatemems are for the parent, belng Wilson &
Horton Limited, and the Group consisting of Wilson & Herton Limited and its subsidiaries

(a} Basis of preparation

The financial stalements presented here are for the reporing entily Wilson & Hortan Lemited. The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepled Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP}. They comply with New Zealand
aquivalents to Infernational Financizl Reporting Standards (MZ IFRS}, and other applicadle Financial Reporting Standards, as
aparopriate for profil-crienled entifies. These financial stalements also comply wilh International Financiai Reporting Standards
(IFRS} and IFRIC inlerpretalions as issued by IASB.

The Company's subsidiary, APN Media (N2) Limiled, was an issuer of debi secarities on the NZDX during the vear. On 19 September
2014, the bonds were repaid {see note 14). However, the Company remained an issuer under seclion 4 of the Financial Reparting Acl
1083 for the entirety of the 2014 financial year. The financial stalements for the period ending 31 December 2015 will comply with Lhe
requirements of New Zealand equivatents to Intemational Finaccial reporing Standards - Reduced Disclosure Regime ('NZ IFRS
ROR™ os APN Media (N2) Limiled wit not be defined as an issuer for the 2615 year, Parent entity information will not be reguired to
be discinsed for the year ended 31 December 2015 as the Group will hava transitioned from the Financial Reporting Act 1993 to the

Financial Reporiing Act 2013,

Statulory base
Wilson & Horton Limited is a company registered under the Companies Agl 1993, it is ingorporated and domiciled in New Zealand.

The entity's registered pffice is 46 Atberl Streel, Auckianc,

The financial statements have been prepated in accordance wilh the requirements of the Financial Repoding Act 1993 andg the
Companies ACL1993

Historical cost convention
These financial statermnents have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention with the exception of certain iterns for which

specific agccounting peiicies are identified

Going concern

The Parent has earned profils from opecations in the period of $4,742,000 (2013 losses of $54,056,000). However, the company has
accumulated losses of $189.651,000 {2013 5206,018,000) and a working capital deficiency of 293,172,000 at the balance date
(2013. 8300,571,000). The vltimale parent company APN News & Media Lid is committed to and is financially able to provide
finanzglia! suppor 1o the Parent as necessary, 10 enable il to continue as a going concern

(i} (hanges in accounting for imastment in Level 4 Portnershio

Tunng the year, the Group has revizwed the accounting for its 39% investment in The Level 4 Partnarship. In iine with NZIFRS 10,
the Group is considered to cantrol the partnership and has subsequently consolidated the Level 4 Pannership, Previously, the Group
accounied for 88% of the Pardnership's assels at fair value

The 31 December 2013 financial Information bas been amended 1o consofidite the Level 4 Partnarship and apply NZIFRS 10 The
key amendments are a5 follows'

Recugnition of additicnal 1% value, ant ar associaled mmority interest {S630,600).

Reclassification of changss in {zir value between the income siatements and foreign currency translation reserves 0 2014
($2.690,000} of changes in fair value have been recognised withio currency translalion reserve. in 2013, 18,900,000 of fair
value decresses previously recogniséd ip ne income statement have been classifisd to forcign currency lrangiation

resanes
Recogailion of related party receivables of $4.275,000 and related party payables of $11,311,000 in the 2013 contparative

financial information

The impaet of this change had no malerial Impacl on the opening balance sheet at 1 January 2013 {betng the start of the earliesi
pertod reported), and on this basis no separale balance sheet has been presented.

Pwce



WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. SUMRARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {rontinued}

{3} Principles of consolidation

fi} Subsidiztles

The consclidated financial statements incorporate the assets and tabilities of Wilson & Horon Limited and its subsidianes as dafinod
under NZ {FRS. Subsidiasies are fuily consolidated from the dale on which controt is rarsferrad  the Group They are de-
consolidaled from the date that control ceases. The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by

the Group {refer note 1 {h})
Intercompany transatlions, balances and unrealised gains on fransaciions between Group companies are eliminated.

Non-cenlrolling inferesls in the 1esults and eguity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the conszolidated income statement,
staternent of comprehensives income, slatament of changes in equily and balance sheet respectively. The effecls of ail rapsactions
with non-controlling interests are recorded in equity if there Is ne change in control, Where fhere is a loss of confral. any remaining
interest in tha ently is remeasured ta falr value and a gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement Any losses are
allacated o the non-goatrelling interest in subsidiaries even if the accumulzied losses showld exceed the non-controling interest in

the individizal subsidiary's equity

(i) Associales

Associales are all entiies over which the Group has significant inliuence but nol control or jaint control. [nvestimants in sssoniates are
accounted for in the consolidated financial stalemenis using the eqinly method of aceouning, after initially being recognised at cost
The Group's investment in associales mciudes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified an acquisition.

(¢} Segment Reporting
The Group has identified operating segments based on the formal of interaal reporis which are raviewed by key management

parsonnhel i assessing perdormance and in aliocating resources

(d} Foreign currency translation

(i} Funciional and presenialion currency

flems Included in tha financial statements of each of the Group's entdies are measured using tha currency of the primary economic
ervironment in which the entity operates {functional currency). The consolidated financial slatements are presented in New Zealand
doltars, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency

() Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions aze raaslated into the functiona! currency using the eschange rates prevailing at the dates of the
wransaclions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulling from the setlemert of such transactions snd from the lransiation al Lhe
yezrend exchange rates of monetaey assela and liabifities denaminated in foreign curencies are recognised in the income
staterment, except when deferred @ other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedoges and qualifying net investmert
hedges.

{iif} Groug endifies

The result and financial position of all the Group enlities that have & functienal currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentalion currency as follows:

« assels and liabiities for each balance sheet presented are transiated st the closing rale ol the date of the balance shaet;

» income and expenses for each slalement of comprehensive income are franslated al average exchange rates; and

« 2l resulting exchange difigrences are recogrised as a separate component of equity.

On ¢onsolidation, exchange differences arising from Ihe fransfation of any ret investmant in foreign enlities, and of botrowings and
other currency instruments desighated as hadgas of such inveslments are taken to equity. When 3 foreign operation is sold or
parial disposal occurs, 2 proportionale share of such exchange differences s recognised in the income slalement as part of the gain
or loss o disposal

Goodwill and fair value adjusiments arising on the acquisilion of a forewgn entily are keated as assets and liabiities of the foreign
entity and transiated at the closing rate

(e} Revenue racognition

Revenue is measured al the fair value of consideralion received or receivable Amounts cisclosed as revenue are nel of
sommissions, felurng, rebates and taxes paid. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measuted
and it is probable thal the economic benefils will Bow to the Group

Advertising revenue from Publishing is recognised when 2 news paper of magazine is published, from broadcasting when the
advertisernent is broadcast and from Online aperations over the perog when displayed. Citculation, printing and coupon revenue is
recognised when control of the goods passes lo the buyer

Othar income includes reatal income, dividends and parlnership income. These ilems are recognised when the sefvices have been
provided o the Group's right Lo receive payment hias been established

Ppwe



VWILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

) Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises currenl and deferred tax. Tax Is recognised in the income stalement, excepl lo the exlent
that il relates to ltems recognised in ather comprehensive income ar direclly in equity In this case the tax is also recagnised in other

comprehensive inceme or direstly in equily, raspectively

The current income {ax charge Is catculated on the basis of the lax laws enaclad or subslaniively enacled al the balance sheel date in
the countries whare the company and ils subsidiaries operale and generate laxable incoeme. Management pericdically evaluates
positions taken in tax refurns with respect 1o situations in which applicable tax reguiation is subject to inlerpretation. It establishes
provision where apprapriale on the basis of amounts expected to be paid 1o the lax authorities.

Deferred iax Incore Is recoghised, using the Hability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
fiabifities and their carrying amounts in the consolidaled financial slatements. However, defarred tax liabililies are not recognised
they arise from Lhe initiai recognition of gosdwill: deferced income tax Is not accounted for if it anses from initial recognition of an asset
of fiability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the fime of the transaction affects neither accounting nor texable
profit o7 loss. Deferred income fax is delermined using tax rales (and laws) that have been enacled or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet dale and are expected o apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liabifity is setled

Deferred income tax assels are recognised only to the extent that it is probable 1hal future tazable profit will be available against
which the temporary didferences can be ulilised

Defarred incorne tax is provided on temporary diflerences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax fabiity where the timing of the reversal of the lemporary difference is copirolied by the Group and il is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeeble fulure

Detarred incame tax assels and Babilities are offsel when there is & legelly enforceable right lo offsel current tax assels againgt
current tax labiities and when the deferred income taxes asseis end liabilities relate 1o income laxes levied by 1he same axation
authority on elfher the same taxable entily or different taxeble entities where there is an infention to setlie the balencas on a nel basis

{g) -Leases

A dislinclion is made between finance teases, which effeclively trensfer from the lessor o the lessee substantially all the risks and
benafits incidental {o ownership of leased non-cstrent gssets, and operating lzases under which the lessor effeclively retains
subslantially 2l such risks and benefits. All operaling lease paymenis are chaiged to the income stalement on a siraight line basis

over the term of the lease

Assels zequired under finande lepses are included as propery, plani and equipment in the balance shest. Flnance leases are
capitalised at the fease's inception al the lower of the fair vaiue of the leased propery and the present value of the minimum leased
paymenls. A corresponding liabifity is atso established and each lease payment is aflocated between the liability and fingnce charges
The inlerest element is charged to profil and loss over the period of the lease

{b} Business comblnations

‘The acquisition method of accounting is used lo account for ali business combinations regardiess of whether equily instruments or
other assels are acquired. The consideration kansferred for the 2cquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair values of the assels
transterred, the Babiliies incurrad and the squily interests issued by the Group. The tonsideration transierred alse includes the fair
vatuge of any contingent consideration arrangemaent and (he falr value of any pre-existing equily interest in the subsidiary Conlingant
consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability, Amounls classified as 2 financial liabilily are subsequently
remeasured le feir value through proft or loss. Acquisilion related costs are expensed as ingurred.

The identifable assels acquired and liabilities and contingent liabllities assumed are measured iritially at their fair values al the
acquisition date. Nen-controlling irerests in an acquiree are recognised either at fair value or al the non-canlrolling interest's
proporlionale share of the acqulree’s net assels. This decision is made on @n acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

The axcess of the consideration lransfesred, the amount of any non-contralling interest in the acquires and the acquistion date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the Group's shate of the net idenlifiable assels scquired is recorded as
goodwill.

(il Common controt
Business combinations in which ail of the combining entilies of businesses ulimately controlled by the same party or parties both
befare and after the combination are recognised as common control transactions

The Group applies the predecessor values method, wilhout any step up 1o Tair value. The net assets acquured. including goodwill, are
incorporated in the Group financial statements al the book values as per the consolidaled finarcial stalements of the highest enlily
that hias common control . APN News & Media Limited). The difference behween any censideration given and the agoragate book
valve of net assets {al the date of the transaction} of the acquired entily is recorded as an adjustment to equity. No additional goodwill
is created.

The Group financial stalements incorporale the acquired erdity’s results only from the dale of acquisiton The comespanding amaunts
of the préevious pericd are nol restated.

1¢
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 Decaember 2014

1. BUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(i} Impairment of assets

Coodwili and infangible assels that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment
and whenever therg is an indicalion thal they may be impaired. Agsets that are subjecl to amortisation are tested for impairment
whenaver svents or changes in circumsiances indicale that the cazrying amount may not ke recoverable. An impairment charge is
resegnised for the amount by which the assct's carrying amount cxcends its recoverable amouni, Tha racoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less coste to seli and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are grouped al
the lowesl levels for which there are separately identifiable cash infiows which are largaly independant of the cash inflows from other
assels or groups of assels {cash-generating units), Non-finansial aasets other than goodwill that suffer impaimment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at 2ach reporking daite.

(k) Cash and eash eguivalents
For cash flow presentation requirements, cash and eash equivalents comprises cash on hand. deposils held at call wilh banks and
investments in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafis.

{} Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured ai amorlisad cost using the effectiva interesl
methed, less provision for doubtiv) debts Trade receivables are generally settfed within 60 days

Dabts whith are Known to be uncollectible are wntten off. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established whete (here is
cbjeclive evidencs that the Group will nol be able to collect 2 amounts due according 1o the original terms of the recaivelle. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced threugh the use of a provision account and the amount of the loss is recopnised in the
income statement within other expenses. Whaen a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the provision account for
lrade receivables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wiilten ofl ara cetited anainst ether mcome in the income
stafemaont

{m} tnventories

Inventorizs are slaled al the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned to inventory quantities on hand at balance
date using the first in first oul basis. Cosl comprises matarial, labout and an appropriate proportion of fixed and vatiable averheads
Nel realisable value i the estmaled selling price in the ordinary course of the business less the estimated cost of completion ang the
estimated cost necessary (o make the safe.

{n) Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets {or dispaszl groeups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be racovered principally through a
sale tansaction rather than through continuing use. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amaount ang fair value less cosls
to sell, except for assels such as defarred t2x assets, assels arising from employee benefits, financizl assats und investment properly
that are carried a! fair value and contractua! rights uader insuranice contracls, which are specdically exempt from this requirement

Non-current assels {including those that are pari of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they ara classiiad as
hetd for sale Interes! and other expenses altributable to the fabilities or a disposal group are classilied as held for sale continues to
be recognized

Non-current assels classified as held for salz and the assets of a disposal group classified as hekd for sale are presented separately
from the other 255018 in the balance sheet. The lizbillties of a disposal group classified as held for szl2 are presented separately from
other liabilittes in the balance shoet

A disconlinued operation is @ component for the entity that bas teen disposed of or is ¢lessified as held for safe and that represents a
separate majer ling of business or geographicat atea of operations, is part of a single coordinatad plan o dispose of such 2 line of
business or area of operalions, or is a subsidiary acouired exclusvely with a view io resale, The results of discontinued operalians
are presented separately on the face of the income statement.

(0) Cther financial assels

i} Ciassification and inftial measurement of finencial assats

Financigl assois are imtially measured at fair value, plus ransaction costs, excepl for those financisl assels classified as al far valus
through profil or 16ss which are inflially meesurad al fair value. Financial assels are subseguently measuszd sl igir vatue or whete
cerlain crileria are mel at armorlised cost

(i Financial assets ot arorised cos!
The Group's loans and receivables meel the requirernents for messuremeni 21 amortised cost based on the objectives for which they

are heid and the contractual terms

For financial assets meacured at amorlised cost the Group ssseseces al each balance dale whelher thete is objective evidence that 3
financial asse! or a group of financial assels is impared.

{iii} Finsncial agsets al fair valug

Investments in equily instrumenls are measured at fak value Al initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevacable election {on
aninstrument-by-inslrument basis) to desighate where gains and lesses ansing from changes in fair value are recognised, beng
aither in profit and loss or in recerves,




WILEON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. BUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(p) Property, plant and aguipment

Land and bulldings are shown al fair value, based on pericdic valualions by exlernat independent valuers, kess subsequent
depreciation for buildings. Any accumulated deprecialion at the date of revaluation is eliminaled against the gross carrying amount of
the asset and the nel amount is restated lo the revaiued amount of the assat. Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost iess
deprecialion. Repairs and maintenance ase chasged lo the inceme stalement during (he fnancial period in which they are incusred.

Increases in the cairying armaounts arising on revaluation of land and buiidings are credited o revatualion rescrves in equity. To the
extent that the increase reverses a decraase previously recognlsed in the income statement, the increase is firsi recognised in the
income stalement. Decreasas thal reverse previous increases of the same asset are first charged against tha revalualion reserves
direclly o the exient of the remaining reserve attributablz te the assel. All olher decreases are charged lo lhe income slatement

Land is not deprecialed. Depreciation on other assels is calculaled using Lhe straight Ine method o allocate their cost or revalued
amounis, net of heir residual values, over their estimaled usefi lives, as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Plant angd Equipment Jto 18 years

The assels’ residual values and uselut lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 21 each Dalance sheet date Anassets
cartying amount is written down immediately i its recoverable amount if the assel's carrying amount is gresler than its estimated
ragoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals aie determingd by companng proceeds with carrying amount and are inclutied in
the income slalement

{q) Intangible assels

() Goodwilf

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over he fair value of the Group s share of the net icenlifiable assels of
the acquired business at the dale of the acquisiion Goodwill is not amortised bul rather is subject 1o pericdic impairment {esting.

(i) Sollwara

Cosis incurred in developing systems and costs incurred in acguiring software and licences are capilniised to software. Costs
capitalised include external direct costs of materials and service and direct payrolt and payroll related costs of employers’ time spent
on the projest Amortisation is caloulaled on a steaight ine basis over periods generally ranging from 3 fo § years

(i} Masthepds
Mastheads, being tho ttles of the newspapers and magazines produced by Lhe Group are accounted for as identifiable assels and
ate brought to account at cosl. The direclors believe tne mastheads have indefinile lives and accordingly, no amortisalion has been

provided against the carrying amount.

{iv) Radio ficences - Auslralia

Commerciat radio licences are acocpunted for as identifiable assels and are brought 1o account al cost. The Directors believe the
izences have indefinite Bves and accerdingly, no amortisalios has been provided against the carrying amounl. The commercial radio
leerces held by the consolidated enlily are renewable every five years under the provisions of the Broadeasting Services Act 1902
and the Dlrectors have no reason lo befieve that he licences will nol be renewed from time te time for the maximum period allowable
under the Act and without Imposition of any condifions

(v) Radio licences - New Zealand
Commercial radio licences are acceunled for as identifiable assets and are brought to account st cost. The current New Zealand radio
licences have been renewed 10 31 March 2031 end are being amortised on a slraighi line basis to that date

{vy) Brands

Brands are accounted for as identfiable assels and are brought te account at casl. The Direclors have consdered Lhe geographic
tocation, lagislative environment and legal, lechnical and other commeraiat factars likely to impact on the useful lives of the brands
and congider that they have indefinite lives. Accordingly, no amortisalion has been provided against the carrying amount

{r) Trade and othar payables
Trade pavables, including accruals not yel biled, are recogrised whan the Group becomes cbliged o make future paymants as a
resull of a purchase of assels or services Tragie accounls payable are unsecured and are generally settled within 30 days.

fs} Borrowings .
Loans and bonds are carried af their principal amounts, which represenl the praser! value of future cash flow associated with
servicing tha debt  Interest is accrued over the pericd 4 becomes due and is recorded as part of payables and accruals, Anciflary
costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of barrawings are deferred and amortised over the pasiod of the borrowing. Thass
ancillary costs are nelied off against the carying value of borrowings in the balance sheel

Borrowings are classified as current liabitiies unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer selilement of the labitity for at lcast
12 months after the reporling period
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WILSON & HORTGOHN LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)

{t} Compound financial instruments
Comoound financial Instruments issued by the Group comprise mandaiary converiible notes that convert lo share capital of the issust

and the number of shares o be issued does not vary with changes in thelr falr value,

The liabilily component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially al the fair value of a similar liabifity that does nel
have an equity convarsion optien. The equity component is recognised initially af (he difference betweoen the fair value of the
compound financlal instrumant as a whole and the fair valug of the fability compenant,

Subsequent o initisl recognition, the liabilty component of a compound financial instrument is measured af amorised sost using the
efiective interest methed. The equity component of a compound financiat instrument s not re-measured subsequent to initia)
recognition

{u} Provisions

Provisions for reslructuring costs and make good abligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or consiructive
obligation as a result of past events, it Is probable that ar outflow of resources will be required lo seltls the obligation and the amount
has been reliably estimated Provisions are not recognised for future operating lossos

Provisions are measured al the present value of management's best eslimale of the expenditure required lo setlle the prosent
obligation al the end of the reparting period. The discount rate used o determine the present valiee 1s a pre-tax rale that reflacis
current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific 1o the labiity. The increzse in the provision due io the
passage of lime is recognised as interest expense.

(v} Empioyee benefits

{7} Weages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilitics for wages and salarigs, incluging non-monetary benefits, annual leave anrd accumulating sick leave expectat o ba wholly

settfed within 12 months from the reporting dale are recognised in payables and accruals in respecl of employees’ services up fo the
veporling date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when Ihe fiabifities are sefiied. tiabiliies lof non-accumutating
sick ieave are recognised when the leavs is taken and maasured at the rates paid or payable

(i) Employee benefit an-costs
Employee Lanefl on-costs are recognised and included i employee bensfit lizbilities and costs when the empioyee bencfits lo which
they relate are recognised os fizbilitics

(i} Short-term incentive pians

Alizbility for sheri-lerm incentives «s recognised In payables and accruals when thers is an expeciation of setlilement and at least one
of the fallowing conditicns is mat.

= Thete ara contracled lerms in the plan for determining the smewst of the benefit;

« The amcunis Lo be paid are determined before the time of complelion of the financial staternents, or

+  Pasl praclice gives clear evidence of the amount of the atsligation

Liabilities for shorl-term incenlives are expecied to be setfied within 12 months and arg recegnised at the amounts expeacted 1o be
paid when they are setlled

(iv) Long-termn incenlive plans - performarce righls

Share-hased compensation benefits are provided to employees by the ullimale patent entity via a Loeng-term Incentive {LT1} plan The
fair value of rights granted under the LTI plan is recognised as an emplovee benefd expense with a cotresponding increase in equily.
The fair value is measwred at gran! date and recognised over the perfod during which the employee becomes uncondilionatly entitisd
o the rights.

The fair value al grant dale is independenily determined using 2 combinalion of the Binomial option pricing model and the Monte-
Carle option pricing model which lake into account the evercise prise, the torm of the right, the vesting and performance criteria, the
impact of dilulion, the non tradeable nature of the right, the sharz prics at grant date and expected price volaltity of the underying
share, the expecled dividend vield and the fsk free Interest rate for the term of the right

The fair value of the rights granted is adjusted 1o reflect the markel vesting condition, but excludes the Impact of any non-market
vesting condifions. Non-market vesting condilions are included in assumplions about the number of rights thal are expected 1o
become exercisable. Al each reporting date, its eslimale of the nursber of rights that are expacied (o become exercisable are revised,
The employes benelit expense recognised each period akes ino account the most recent estimate. The impact of the revision o the
orginal estimales. is recognised in profit of losg with 2 corresponding adjusiment to squity

{(w) Coniributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as squily. Incremantal cosis directy atiribitable 10 the issue of new shares or aplions are shown in
oquity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceads

ix) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The income statement has been prepared so that all components are slated exclusive of GST Ali jlems in the balance sheel are
staled nel of GST, with exception of receivables and payables, which include GST invsiced. On the statemants of cash flows receipis
from customers and paymenis o suppliess are shown inclusive of GST

-
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 Dacember 2014

1. SUMKMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{y} Critical accounting judgements and key sources of astimation uncertainty

The Group makes eslimates &nd assumptions concerning the fulure. The resulling accouniing estimales will by definition, sefdom
equal the refaled actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant fsk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amours of the assets and lipbitities within the next financial year are discussed below,

(i} impairrnent

The Group annually tests whelher goodwill and other non-amortising intangibie assets {including mastheads and radio licenses) have
suffered any impairment, in accordance whh the accounting policy slated in note 1 {j). The recoverable amounts of cash generating
units have been determingd based on value in use caleulations. These calculations require the use of assumptions. Refer fo note 11

for details of these assumplions

{ii) Valuations of cthar financial assels
The Group perindically revalues olher financial assets in accordance with the pccounting palicy stated in note 1 (o). Those vaivations
are based on available information a1 the time the vatuation fs conducted but is subject to estimation. Refer to note 27 for details of

thesa assumptions

{iif} Ingorne lazes

The Group is subjecl 1o income taxes in New Zealand and where it has foreign operations Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes There are cerlaly transactions and calcufations undertaker: during Whe ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate 1ax determinabon s uncerain. The Group eslimates ils tax iiabilities based on the Group's
undersianding of the tax faw Where the final tox outcome of these matiers is different from the amount that were inittally recorded,
such differences will impact the curent and deferred income tax assets and lighilkies in the pencd in which such determination is
made

Jutigement is also required in relation te the recognition of camed forward tax losses as deferred tax assets. The Group assesses
whather there will be sufficient future taxsble profils o utilise 1he losses based on a range of facters, including ferecast earnings and
whether the unused tax fosses resulted from identified causes which are untikely to recur.

(iv)] favestmants in subsidiarics

There are a number of areas where judgement is exercised to establish whether an entity needs to he consolidated In order o

eslablish whether an enlity is a consolidated subsidiary key areas of judgement include:

= Qualitalive analysis of an entity indluding review of, among othet faclors, ils capital struclure, contractual terms, relzted pany
relationships ano dasign of the entity,

= Rights of parthars regarding sigmfican! business declsions, including disposals end acquisitions ol assels,

= Board and management representation;

+  Ability o make financing decisions; and

= Cpatating and capita! budget spprovale and contractual rights of other parties

The exercise of judgement on these areas delermines whether a particular entily s consolidated . In particular, the Group exerciged
its ludgement in delermining the nature of control in Auslralian Radio Nefwork, the Level 3 Partnership and Level 4 Parinership

(z) Now standards and standards and interpretations issued bat not yet effective

(i} New siandards applied during lhe period
New accounting slandards affective during the year are not considered lo have a significant impact on the financial slatemenls

presented

(i} New slandards, amendments, and inferpralations o existing standarde which are relevant fo the Group bul which the Group has
no! eanly adopled

NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from contracls with susiomers deals with revenue recagnition and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial slatermenls about the aalure, amount, timing and uncerizinty of revenue and cash flows arising from
an entily's contracts with cuslomers. Revenue is recognised when a customer oblains control of a good or service and thus has the
wbility to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces NZ 1AS 18 'Revenue’ and NZ 1AS it
*Construction coptracis’ and relaled inlerpretations The slandard is effeclive for annual periods beginning on of after 1 January 2017
and earlier application is permitted. The Group inlends io adopt NZ IFRS 15 for the firsl pered beginning after its effective date and is
currenlly assessing its full impact

Thete are no other standards and interpretations that are not yet effeclive and that are expected to have a malerial impact on the
Group in the current or fulure reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 1he vear ended 31 December 2014

2, REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parant
$'000 5000 £'000 s'ooe
Rovanue from operations
Advartising revenue 524,610 523,536
Circulation revenue 98,392 112,243
Other revenue 13,189 12,387
Revenus frem operations 636,171 648,176 .
Other income
Dividends recalved 2,037 4,400
Gain on sale of properties and businesses 2,047 1,401 - -
Derecognition of contingent consideration provision " 2,808
Cibor 8,528 3,408 -
Qthor income 8,610 11.812 " -
Finance income
Interest received — retated parties 13,734 18,774 6,489 5,605
Inieresi receivad - other entities 362 431 11 -
Finance income 14,093 17,205 &,500 5,605
Total cther revenuo and income 23,703 20,017 5,500 5605
Total revenue and other Income 659,874 677,193 6,500 5,605
3. EXPENSES
Expsnsas before finance costs
Employae banefits expense 228,757 234,636
Selling and production expanse 150,394 188,138
Rental and ocoupancy expenss 10,096 18,300 “
Cepreciation and amorlisation expense 24,542 24,266 . -
Maslhead licanse fees 28,738 30,213 -
Costs in relation io cne-off projects 2,272 . -
Redundancies and associatad cosls 4,874 3,008
Asset wiledowns and business closures 1,811 4,214 - .
Olher 58,184 58,415 235 31
Total expense heforg finance cosis 550,583 562,180 285 31
Finance costs
Irterest and finance charges - refaled parlies 3,819 7,327 30,092 30,411
Imterest and finance charges — other enlities 18,864 16,617 8,872 8,244
Borrowing cost amortisation 3,254 2,034 1,171 G20
Totat finance costs 26,037 25,978 39,885 38,577




WILSON & HORTON LIBITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

4. SBEGHENT REPORTING

(2} Bescription of Segments

Management has delermined the cperating segments based on the Internal reports reviewed by Lhe Dirgclors and other senior

management ieam In assessing performance and in aflocating resources.

The four reporiable segments are as foliows:

NZME Publishing

Newspaper, magazing and online publisting

NZME Radis Radio networks throughoul Kew Zealand

GrasOne e-Commerce busingss
Melropolitan radio networks in Australia

Auslralian Radio Netwark

{b) Results by operating segment

The Directors snd senior management team assess the perfarmance of the operating segment based on e messure of eamings
before interest, Lax, depreciation and amorliszlion {EBITDA} which exciudes the effec!s of exceptional Hams such as gains or fosses

on disposals of businesses and restructuring related cosls

tn 2014, Ine New Zealand Media segment was renamad NZME. Pullishing; The Radio Network segment was renamed NZME Radio

and GrabOne is now being separalely reporied as a segment.

The segment informaticn provided to the Direclors and senior management leam for the year ended 31 Decernber 2014 is shown

balow
2044 MNZME NZME
Publishing Radin
3000 5000
Revenue from external customers 285,384 127.015
Segment resull 51,591 25112
Segmen! assals 97.931 182,408
45,238 12,600

Sagment liabiiles

Reconciliation of segment resuit {o eperating profit before tax

Segment rasull

Depreciation and amortisation

Net finance cost

Asset wriie downs, disposals and business closures
Redundancies and associated casts

Cos!s in relation 1o one-off projects

Impairment of intangible assets

Foreign exchange loss

Dhange o value of Ingrciad meyement

Profit before tax

GrabTine

$000

20,683

4,364

28,410

§.666

Australian
Radio
Hetwork
§000

183,079

72,546

509,931

79,435

Unallocated

000

{36,522}

322,508

403,257

Total
5000
536,171

117,081

1,141,188

545,194

7,081

{24,542)
{11,244)
1,236
(4.871)
{(2,.672)
(7.239)
(4d4)

47,546

20ead

Net finance costs inchedes en early redemption premium paid to holders of the New Zealand retall notes redeemed duning the year of
$2.0 milion: and the write off ot unamortised borrowing costs assacialed with the previous financing arrangements of $1 9 million,

Net gain on disposal of properiies 2nd businesses primarily relales 1o the gain on the sale of the NZ Magazines business to Baver

Media in February 2014
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WILSOM & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 Dacember 2014

4. SEGHMENT REPORTING {continuaed}

Redundancies and associated vosts relale io he ongeing restrucluring of cur NZME Publishing Division and infegration of the New
Zealand operalions

The costs relating to eng off projects refate to cosls rafated o the proposed NZME PO process and tosts relaled fo the inlagration cf
MZME.

Change in fair value of financial instrument relates Lo Level 4 Parinership's investment in a debenture iscued by Naihco Holdings Pty
Lid, & member of the APN News & Media Limited Group

2013 NZME MNZME GrabOne  Australian  Unallocated Tolat
Publishing Radio Radic
Nepwerk
5000 5000 2000 $'000 $'000 $000
Revenue from external cuslomers 330,453 120,684 21,584 175,545 . 548,176
Segment result 63,595 23543 8,657 £5.345 (35,563) 125,277
Segment assels 310.502 177,496 27.865 382,236 335,436 1,233,535
Segment liahilities 48,708 14,665 7,145 27,071 364,786 467,385
Reconciliation of segmiont result to oporating profi before tax
Segment rasult 125,277
Deprecation and amortisation (24,266)
et finance cost 18,773)
Gains on derecagnilion of contingent consideralion provision 2,608
Redundancies and associaled cosis {3.0C8)
Agsel write downs and business closures 2,813)
Ghange in fair vaiue of financial instrument ) - ) e e RET
Profit hefore tax 85,238

The gain on derecognition of conlingent consideration provision relates w adiustmentis 1o the amounts due under eam aut
anangements relafing {o the acquisifion of ides HQ in 2092,

Redundancies and assoclated cosie relate 1o the restructuring program put in place during the yaar in the NZ Media Division
Assel writedowns, disposals and business clozures relale mainly 10 print and publishing properties and equipment

{£) Other segment information

Segment tevenues and expenses comprise amounts thatl are direcily atiribulable lo a seament and the relevant portion that can be
allocated on a rensonable basis. Corporate ovgrheads including ceniralisad finance, fegal and adminfstrative costs and related parly
royalty charges ara not allocaied against oparating segments but ralher ars included above as unallocaled amounts,

Segment assels include all assols used by 2 seament and consist primarily of operaling cash, receivables, inventories. propery, plant
and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets, net of reiated provisions. Segment liabiiities consist primarily of rade and other
payables, employee benalils and provigion for restructuring. Tax balences, the financial instrzment and exdemal borrowing are not
alloeated to operaling assets or Habilities

Seament revenves and results exclude wansiers between segments Such transfers are priced on an arm's fength basis and are
aliminated on consolidation.

The entity 15 domiciled in New Zealand and operales predominantly in Mew Zealand and Australia. The amount of lts revenue from
exiemnal customers in New Zealand is $443,082,000 {2013 $472,031.000} and Avstralia $183,078,000 (2013 §175,545,000)
Segment revenues are allocated based on the country in which the customer is located

The total of non-curzent assels localed in Mew Zealand is 252,519,000 {2013 $244,481,000} and Australia is 518,671,000 {2013
$502,815,000). Segment assels are allocated 10 countries besed on where the assels are locsted.
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

5. INCOMWE TAX EXPENSE

2014 z013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
Note $'ooo 5'000 $'000 $'000
Income tax expensefibenefit) differs from the amount prima facie pavable
as follows
Prafit! (loss} from operalions befose tax 87,546 £5,238 {4,831) (62.722)
Prima facie income 1ax at 28% 24,513 23,867 (1,381) (17.,562)
Non assessatle assel sales and exempt distribulion receipts (3,324) {2.172) -
Non-deductdle impairmentirevaluation (3,758) 1,060 {8,041} 8,041
Gains on derecognition of contingend consideration provision . {730)
Non deductible previously recognised lax losses 112
Dilterennes in international lax keatments and rales 2,870 1,518
Non-deduclivie expenses 937 725 -
MNon-daduclible interest 854 654
L e e e L S 5 O .. )
Prima facie tax adjusted for permanant differences 21,624 76,73 (9,917) {8,667)
Recognilion of deferrad lax on ARN joining the lax
censelidation group 20 4,935
AGvarundet praqaumn por v s [ & 12 . poba 244 I
Income tax expense ! {banefii} 36,416 27,238 (8,673} {8,6580)
Reponted incorne 1ax expense | (benefil) comprses
Current tax expense! (benefit) 23,061 24,977 (241} (719}
Deferred tax expensel{henefit 13,498 1,257 (9,676) {7.548)
5 GO B2 TS SO
Income tax expense { (henefit) 35,416 27,238 (9,873) {8,666)

The Company is involved in & dispute with the New Zeaiand inland Revenue Deparment (IRD) segarding certain financing
transactions, The dispute invelves tax of NZ§64 miltion for the period up to 31 December 2014, The :RD are sesking 10 impose
penallies of betwveen 10% end 50% of the ax in dispule and interesl in addition to the lax claimed. The Company has tax losses
available 10 ofise! apy amount of tax payable 1o lhe extent of $48 million.

0n 22 February 2013 the Adjudication Unil of the IRD agvised that it agrees with the posiion laken by the IR Accordingly the IRD

issued Molices of Assessment denylng deductions in relation to interest claimed on certain financing iransactions. in response to this
step the Company has commenced litigation in the High Court of New Zealand to defend its position in relalion to this matler
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

6. RECEIVABLES 2014 2013 2014 2015
Group Broup Parent Parent
3660 3'000 5000 5000

85,912 81,019

Trade receivables
1,508} (508

Fravis
35,107 79,397
Arnounts due from relaled companias (nale 21} 252,284 382,389 515,622 586 832
UGtk rocgivaties st prepayments R 12,020 LRy . __zh
Folaf current recalvables 348,411 473,673 514,688 588 558

Trade recevables are generally setlled wilkin 60 days. The Directors congider the carndng amount of lrade recelvablos approximales
their net (air value, Loans o refaled companies are unsecured, interest bearing and repayabie ot cali.

(a) lmpaired trade receivables
As al 31 December 2014, current trade receivables of the Group with & nominal value of $3,522,000 (2013 $3,402.000) were

Impaired For the purposes of NE JIAS 39 Financial Insiruments, impaired recgivables are regarded as those thal aze more than 90
days past due together with any other balances where the credit deparimenl considers collection i be in doubt. The ameunt of the
provision was $1,605.000 (2013 51,622,000} 1 was assessed ihat 2 portion of the impaired receivables is expected to be recovered.

The ageing of these receivables is 53 follows:

Cne (& thige monhihs 1,811 988

Three lo six menths 971 1,350

L ey I B, S BN I S N
3,522 3,402

Impaired rocsivables

Movernents in the pravision for doubtiul debts are as follows

Balance at begioning of the year
Provisian for doubtfat debls expensed

% £t ol

Provigion for doubtful debts

{by Past due bul not impaired ~ trade receivables
As of 31 December 2014, lrade receivables of $18,454,000 (2043 §18,395.000) were past due but not impaired. These receivables

are: 90 days or less past dug
Amounts charged to the provision account sre generally wnlten off when there (s no expectation of recovery,

The other classes within frade and other receivables do not contain impayed asseis and are nol past dus. Based on previdus
coffestion history, these receivables would be expecied o be collected

(¢} Fair value and credit risk
The fair value of current recaivables is assumed 10 be their current value due to thelr shoi-term nature

The maxtmum exposure 16 credit risk 2t the reporting date is the hlgher of the carrying amount and fair value of each receiveble. The
Group does not hold any collaleral s security. Refer nole 25 for further information on the rish management policy of the Group,

i
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

7. BWVENTORIES 2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Paront Farent
£'080 5000 $°000 5000
Flew yatenafs 2322 2123 o
Total inventories 2,322 3,121 .

8. ASSETYS CLASSIFIED A% HELD FOR SALE

On 11 November 2013 the Company and the Bauer Media Group [Bauer) announced that they had enlered inle ar agreement for the
sale and purchase of New Zealand Magazines’ consumer titles.  Under the agreement, all the Group's wholly owned magazing
brands, being the New Zealand Woman's Weekly, The Listener, Simp'y Yeou, Simply You Living and Creme are sold to Beuver The

transaction compleied on 28 February 2014,

The assets and Hablliies associated with the tiles sold lo Bauer were being treated as assels held for sale al 31 December 2013:

{a) Assots classified o5 held Jor sale

2613
fxuly
Disposal group held for sale
Property, piant and equipment 161
intangible assels 748
Other 379
Total assets of disposal group held for sale 783
(b) LiabHities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
Disposal group held for sale
Friyr B
Totzl lizbilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 3,132
9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 2014 Z013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
§'600 £000 §'¢00 $'000
Listad investments 1 1 .
Shares in subsidiary companies - 602,565 573,848
Shares in olher companies 27.64% 25.011 .
Frrangas motrunent hotd Dy Leve 4 Porngrchg - | aFae BhEE .
Total other financial agsets 132,370 111,881 602,565 573,846

Al other financiat assets except for shares in subsidiary companies are categarised as assets at fair valuz through the profif or loss

and are reflected above at their fair valugs

The financial inslrument held by Level 4 Partnership refers io an investment in a debenlure issued by Natheo Holdings Ply Lid
{Nathgo). & member of the &PN News & Media Limited Group. The temms of debenture entitie the Level 4 Paninership to receive 5%

of the profils of Nathco

On the pasis of a sustainable increase in the net assets of its subsidiary, APN NZ Investments Limited the Company has reversed Lhe
2013 impairment of $28,719,600 and recognised the reversal in the current Income Statemenl.

The parent’s invesiment v shases In subsiclary companies is stated al historical cost, in accordance with NZ IAS 27 Separale

Financial Slatemenis.

Shares in other companles represent ownership interests in companies that are not consolidated or equity accounted
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YILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

9.  GTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS {continued)

Shares in subsidiary companias
Significant subsidiaries inciude;

Name of Entity

APN Heldings NZ Limited

APN Spacialist Publicatons NZ Limited

NZME. Publishing Limited {formery APN New Zealand Limitod)
APK Print NZ Limited

APN NZ Investments Limited

iden HQ Limitad

GrabOne Limited

Austrakan Radio Network Ply Lig =

MZME. Radio Limiled {formerly The Radio Metwark Limited} ¥
The Level 4 Parinership ™

The Level 3 Partnership ©

Principal Activity

tdedia and Publishing
Media and Publishing
Media and Publishing
Prinfing

Invesiment
investmant

Onling businesses
Commercial radio
Commercial radio
Investment
Investmant

Crnorship interest

2014 2013
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
50% 50%
50% 803%
9% 899%
98%

All subsidiary entities lisled above have a balance date of 31 December and are incotporated in New Zealand wilh the exceplion of

Australian Radio Network Pty Lid which is incarporated in Ausiralia.

wilson & Herton Limited holds 50% of the Issued capital. Wilson & Horlon Limiled exercises effective control over the entily based

on the Buard and management representotion and the 76 8% econamic interest held by the Group.

& During the year, the Greup has reviewad the accounting for its 99% inveslment In The Level 4 Parlnership. In ling with NZIFRS 10
the Group is consideres o control the parinership and has subseguantly consolidaled the Level 4 Parnership. Previously, the Groug
accounled for 89% of the Parlnershipy's assels af fair valug In line with NZIFRS 10, the Group is considered o contro! the Level 3

Partrership and has consolidated The Leve! 3 Parnerstip, which was eatabidshed for the frstlime in 2014

1




WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

10, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold Buildings Plant and Totai
Group Land Equipmeni
$000 $'000 $000 5000
At 1 January 2013
Cosl or fak value 5913 3,582 427,319 436,814
Accaniated duptgooton e . - (3602973 (320,207}
Net bpok amount 5,813 3,682 107,022 116,517
Year ended 31 December 2013
Opening net boek smaunt 5,913 3,582 107,022 116,517
Additions i22 12,339 12,441
Transfers 10 assels for sale {161) {167}
Dispasals {420} {1,154) {2,394) {3,968)
Dopreciation - (308) {18,495} {18,803}
impairmenl (2,980 {2,580}
farerm gxchange diferences - (74 65} (1201 |2 208)
Rot ook amouni ~ ~ _ B B 5418 PATE @7, AGAIGT
At 1 January 2014
Cosl os falr valug 5,418 2,208 382,384 400,098
Accumulaled gupiecatlion . (2o 290 TgRy 198303
Wet ook amount ) 5,414 2,176 sager e
Year ended 31 Decembeor 2014
Opening net book amount 5419 2,478 93.202 100,797
Additions B6 11,558 11,624
Disposals {2,200) {840} {223) {3,362}
Deprecialion - (231} {16,868) {17,089)
i3 0 ogrghipnng g I £ 1 (i) SFE {457}
“Netbook amourt -k T @ ra 91,903
As et 31 December 2014
Cost or fair value 3,108 1,514 403,431
AcCrGuipled gepiiaton oed mpaie s L . {357 {411,928}
Mot book amount B © s 115 91,503

The Directors consider that freehold lang and byildings are carned at fair value

Independen valuations wers carried out in 2012 by certified valuers and carrying values have been adjusted 1o refigct their

valuations.

Group propery localed in Auckland was sold in lhe pedod. In 2013 group properties in Bay of Plenty. Wararapa and Hawkes Bay

were sold.
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WILEON & HORTON LHBITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the vear ended 31 Decamber 2014

11, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill  Soflware {i) Mastheads  Radio Licences Brands Tatal
$'G00 000 $000 000 $'600 5000
At January 2013
Cost 166,021 32,220 15,830 447,673 53,148 720,892
Accumulated amortisation (95,614} {22.986) (8,591 (24 525% {151.716)
Net book amount 70,407 8,234 7,239 423148 58,148 569,176
Year ended 31 Decembrer 2013
QOpening net book amount 70.407 9,234 7,239 423.148 59,148 568,176
Additions : 2274 - 2274
Disposals {286) {266}
Transiers o assets held for sale (248) {248)
amortisation . (2.980) {2,480} (5:450)
Other adjusiments 75 {72) 4
Forelgn enshangs dilicrences {353 1 e e i
Het book amomt o ~ iR § 7RE R NLY
At 1 Januory 2014
Cosi 166 .062 16,830 385,147 59,076 668,548
| Acturnulaied aniorieation (55 G145 B58%) a7 o5 ;.84
Hot book amount o 70448 365 142 LG TR
Year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount 70.448 7.808 7.239 368,142 59,075 5%2,900
Additions 4,732 17.457 22,189
Amartisalion (4,174) {3,268} (7,443)
Impatrment {7.239) (7,238}
Other adjustmants {215} - (215)
Forgion grehange sl e 1 N L eiiieal HANED]
Helbootamowat . 371000 503 45
At 31 December 2014
Cost 165,848 37.140 15 530 401447 59,079 $79.344
Sccumulsleg anmrliziion angd paiTient 18 By 28 B0 (15 85 (3285 {178,200;
Net book smount T o h A 50575 BGRALG
{1 Soflware additions for the year inslude §1,600.000 £2013: §1,808,000) which were internaily generated.
Altocation of goodwill and non-amortising intangible assets
2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
£'000 5000 $'000 §'000
Name of CGU
NZME Publishing - Regional {formerly New Zealand Media - Regional) - 7,238
NZME Radio {formerly New Zealand Ragio) 3751 103,751
GrabOne 25,559 25,558
Australian Radio 314,558 325578
Total goodwill apd nen-zmortising intangible assets 443,868 462127
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the vear ended 31 December 2014

11, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment of cash gensrating vnits (CGUs) including indefinite life intangible assets

Dusing the year, it was determined that there were indicators of impairment of New Zealand publishing assets, arising from the
chalienging trading condilions impacting performance, Therefore, an impalment review of the respective CGU was performed.

As 2 resull of the review the carrying ameunt of mastheads aliocated to the NZME Publishing - Regional CGU was reduced o their
recoverable amounts through the recegnition of an impairment charge of $7.2 million. The impairment of the New Zealand pssets was

@ result of a number of faclors inciuding the challenging trading condaicrs and the continuation of {he slructurat changes in the

atvartising maskel

The tmpairment charge impacted the NZME Publisking - Regional CGU a5 follows:
impairment charge

2014 500D

Carrying value of
intangible agsets

$'ooe

NZKE Pubhstung - Regoral Hormerly New Zealond Meda - Regional) 7,230

Yeor-gnd impairment review

A comprehensive impairment review was conducied al 31 December 2014, The recoverable amaunl of each CGU which includes
gooowill or indefinite life indangible assets has been reviewed. The recoverable amount of each CGLY is delermined based on the
higher of fair value less costs o sell and value in use calculations using management budgets and forecasts for a three year peried
sfler adjusting for central ovetheads. Cash flows beyond five years are exirapolated sl growth rates nol exceeding the long term
averane growih rale for the business in which the CGU operates. The discount rates used refiect specilic risks relating fo the relevan!

segments and lhe countries in which they operate

The key assumplions used in lhe value in use calculations are’

2014 2014 2013 2013
Paost-tax Long-term Post-tax Long-larm
Name of CGY disgount  growth rale disgpunt growih rale
e saite
NZME. Puplishing — Metro (formearly New Zealand Media - Melro) 10.5% 0.0% 11.0% Q0%
MZIE Publishing — Regions! #ormerly New Zealand Media — Regional) 40,55 0.0% 11,D% (2.0%}
NZME Radio (formedly New Zealand Radio) 10.5% 2.0% 11.0% 2.0%
GrabOne 10.5% 2.5% 12.0% 4.0%
Auslralian Radio G805 8% 10 G SO
Fair value less costs © self and value in use calculations are sensitive 10 changes in key assumptions. AT CGUs have sufficient
heaaroot: such thal reasonable changes to key assumptions wouid net give rise Lo an impairment charge.
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the vear ended 31 December 2014

12. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Hovemnents in deferred tax - Group Balance  Recognlsed  Recognised Other Balance
1dan 13 in income in equily movemeants 31 Dec 13
5000 3000 $'000 5000 5000
Tax gredits 4 2,170 . 2,174
TFax losses 54,238 7423 {8,228) 52,434
Employee benefits 3,176 (826) 2,550
Doubtiul debis 580 (122} 458
Accrualsiresiructuring 2,863 (3.859) 3116 2,122
Intangible asseis (29,832} 1,387 239 (3,116) {30,622
Cepreciation {11,846} (498} - . {12,344}
Financial instiuments 16,134 (7.770)
Caiss e B S A R
31,354 {1,257} 939 (9.228)
Balance  Recognised  Recognised Qther Balance
1 Jan 14 in incoma in equity  rovements 31 Deg 14
5'000 5000 5'000 3000 5'000
Tax cregits 2,174 {1,262} 912
Tax losses 52,434 11.857 (3,715} 60,576
Empioyee benefils 2,550 (152) 2,398
Coubtful debis 458 62 520
fecrualafresiructuning 2,122 (3.6885) {1,563}
intangible assels {30,622} {11,023) 249 (41,398)
Gepreciation {12.344) (619} (12,963)
Financial instrements 8.364 {8,364)
it BN %) LS £3640)
Z1i.a08 {13,498) 249 {3,715} 4,844
Hovements in defesred tax - Parent Balgnce  Recognised Recognised Cther Balance
1dan 13 in incame in equity movements 31 Dec13
000 $'000 5000 000 §'G30
Tax iosses 52 108 15,428 {2.760) 64,776
Financial instruments 16,134 (7,770} . 8,354
G - o T . o el
56,188 7048 - (2,780} 73.377
Balance  Recognised  Racognised Other Balance
1.Jan 14 in income i ety movemenls 31 Dee 14
§000 5000 000 5000 5000
Tax losses 54,776 18,501 (1.734) 81,543
Financial insiruments 8,364 (8,364)
n Y -t [ o o . el
73,377 9,676 {1.734} 81,318

Group deferred income {ax assels and liabililies are presenied nel in he analysis above These include net delerred income lax
habifities of 533,527 800 (2013 517.204,000} ariging from the Group's Australian subsidiaries

(A=
o
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2014

horrowing costs

13, PAYABLES 20144 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Paranl
§'060 $'000 $'000 %000
Trads and other payables 75,050 75,376 1,766 4,085
Amounis due fo subsidiary companias {nole 21) 806,351 854,481
Aumounts dug 1o iclaled sompanies {note 21 205,138 167 317 iz U7
Total payables 280,188 247,693 809,039 858,263
Tradz snd olher pavabies are generally seitiad wilhin 30 days from the end of the months in which they are incurred.
i4. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
$000 $'000 $'G00 $000
Current
Mandatory convertible noles 29,870 29.870
_Lhies Bnancay R toad
Total current interest bearing liabilitles 1,722 31,414 29870
Hon-current
Bank Ipans - securad ¥ 220,060 228,060
Bank loans - unsecured © 58,500 E9,500
New Fealand Bonds 100,000
- . et 2070
Total non-current interest bearing liabilitics 221,257 172,479 220,000 69,500
Bedust
Borrawing costs - 11,568 6,617
Net borrowing costs - 3.254 - 3,172
Total non-current interest bearing lakilities, net of 221,267 169,205 220,000 £8,328

M The APN News & Medio Lindes group’s dcbt fackitizs were eflnanced 1 September 2094 vith a syndizale of domestc and internationsl banks.
Fhe bank laans ore securcd by morgages ever a portion of the a5sels of APN Mows and Media Linnter and ils subs'Jares, which inglude assets of

the Witson & Hurton group

Weaw Zealand Bonds

in September 2014 the fixed rate bonds ("New Zealand Bonds”) issued by APN Media (NZ) Limited on 15 December 2019, with a
coupon rate of 7 86% per annum and maturing 15 March 2018, were redeemed early as pan of & refinancing underlaken by APN

News ang Modia Limiled
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

MOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

14, INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES (continued)

Mandatory Convertible Nofes

On 17 February 2005, the parent entity issued 150,000,000 8.03% convertible notes far $349,500,000 fo Marmnin Limited {£Marnin™,
an entity conlralled by the Group's ullimate parent company. inferest was payable in June and December each year. On 10
December 2014, Mamin delivered the convertible notes 0 APN Intcrnational Pty Limitod, 3 mamber of the APN News & Media
Limited Group. On 20 December 2014 each issued nole convered to ong ordinary share in the parent entity.

The mandatory convertible notes are presenied in the baiance sheel as Pollows:

2094 2013

$'eoo 5006
Face vaiue of converible notes issued on 17 February 2005 349,500 349,500
Erasty comptnant {132,885) (120 Bl
Liabilily compenent on initial recognition 216,615 216,615
Inlerest expenss Lo dale 83,017 91,328
RlsleLpayments 1 galn 309,832y & S

Liability component at 31 Dacomber - 28.870

The lighility i5 split between the current and non-current glements as foliows:

z074 2013
§1000 $'000
Current liabilidies 79,870
Bl A e et e .
Liability comnponent ol 31 December . 28,870
13, PROVISIONS
2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Faranl
s'000 F000 5'a00 §'06¢
Current provision
Employee entiflements 10,288 10,194
= ‘ 750 1805

Zifh

Total currend provision 11,008 12,154

fon-Current

FEIUUir T R viion

Totat non-cusrent provision - A45
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VWILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

15. PROVISIONS (continued)

Movernents in provisions
fovemenis in each class of provision during the financial year, other than eamployee benefits, arg set out below.

Group 2014 Restructuring Total
$'000 $°060
2,405 2,405

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Charged to profil or loss

Additional provisions recognised 60 414]
_Amounicdgeed T I SEURUUUNG U.01c NN, K 11 I
Carrying ameount at end of the year 710 710

The restrucluring provision includes onerous rental contracls and expected redundancy costs related to formaily anaounced
restructuring plans.
16, CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
2014 2013 2014 2013

Number Number £'000 §'000
Share capitol
Issuad and paid up capital 228,550,000 228,550,000 279873 279,974
Gonvearsion of mandatory converible noles™ 150,060,000 204,268
Retun of capilal to shareholders . {123,979)
Cther oguity securities
Vo of o A NghiL - MontEe s onebble Rotes 204,368
Total confributed aquity 378,550,800 226,550 000 360,362 484,342

All ordinary sharas rank cqually with one vole sttached o each ordinary share and have no par value,

B0n 20 December 2014, each of the 150,000,008 mandatory converdible noles on issie convened lo one ordinary share In the
Parent

“0n 14 December 20114 the Direclors approved a partizl repayment of share capital. representing a repayment of AS0.28 per
ordinzry share. A total repayment of capital of A%105,304,000 was made on 23 December 2014 The repayment made by the Parent
was in parl lunded vig a promissory note for AS62,000,000 (NZ$65,720,000) endorsed 16 the Company by APN Holdings NZ Lid,




WIHLSON & HORTOM LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 Decamber 2014

17. REJERVES AND RETAINED PROFITSH{ACCUMULATED LOSSES)

2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Paront Parent
$'00D $'060 5000 $'000
{a} Reserves
Assef revaluation reseve 1,185 2,408
Foreign curenty ransiation resorve {48,160} {43,331)
Transactiong with non-conbolng miteels eseve 8,358 162758 -
Total reserves {38,616) {47,298) -
Asset revatuation reserve
Balance at beginning of the vear 2,400 2,297
Revaluation of freehold land and bufldings 156
Transter t¢ foreign currency anslation reserve 35 295
_Tiengion b ritsined pofits [ figia LRl S
Balance st end of year 1,165 2.408 -
Fereign currency translation reserve
Balance at beginning of the year {43,321} 23,8415
Foreign exchange translers fiom other reserves {35) §.847
Net exchange diierence on rarsiation of faroign operations Lo tavey 174,023 - -
Balenece 2t end of year (49,160} {43.331) -
Transactions with nen.controlling mnterests reserve
Balange al beginning of the year (6,373) (6.373) .
Lizesnaseas Fpuiehase conndins wrediend butingis o iaraz - e
Baiance at end of yaar 8,359 {6,373} -
(b} Retalned profitef{pccuamuinted iosses)
Hatance al boginning of the year 35,277 15,058 {206,018) {151,962}
Transler {offrom reserves 1,414 (6,957} -
Gain on return of caplial Lo shareholders 11,625 11.625 -
Profittiosses) giinbuiable w ewnors of o carentantty B85 2FED 4747 {54 056
Balance at end of year 79,511 35,277 {169,651) {208,018)

{c} Hature and purpose of resarves

(i)  Assetrevaluation reserve

The assat revaluation reserve is used 10 record increments and decremenis on the revaluation of non-current assels, as described in
accounting policies. The balance sianding to the credit of the reserve may be used to satisfy the distnbution of bonus shares 1o
shargholders and is only available for the payment of cash dividends in limited drcumstences as permitied by iaw

{iij Foreign currency translation reserve
Exchange differences arising on translalion of any fareign conlrelied entities are laken o the foreign currency transiation reserve, as

descrined in accoeunting policles
(i} Transactions with non-controliing interests reserve

This reserve is used 1o record the diffarences cescribad in note 1{0Y1 which may arlse as a resal of bansactons with non-controliing
interests that do not resull in 2 loss of centred,
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WILSON & HORTON LEAITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

7. RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS {continucd}

{d} Non-conticlling interest

2014 2013

Group Group

$'000 £'000

Share capital 207,583 240,807
Reserves (1,924) 2,059
Retained Profits 157,045 150,329
it {171,968} {76,448
Non-contralling interests 190,736 293,827

18, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) Guarantees

The witimate parent entily ang al! whely-owned controlled entities, including those in Ihe Wilson & Horton Limited group, have
provided guarentees in respect of banking facililies  As at 31 Decemnber 2014 the facilities had been drawn down fo the extent of

AS487 647,000 (2013 A§454,270,000}

The uitmate parent entity and aff wholly-owned controlled enfilies, including those in the Wilson & Herlen Limited group, have given

guaranieas in respect of cerlain banking facililies of AS1,804,000 (2013: AS6,581,000).

(b} Claims

Claims for damages are made against the Group from lime to time in the ordinary course of business. The Direclors ere not aware of

any glaim that s expected to result in material sosts or demages

The Parenl eptily is involved in a dispute with the New Zeaiand Inland Revenue Depariment regarding cerlain financing lransactions

Refer to note 5 for further details.
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WILBON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

19, COMMITHMENTS

{a) lLease cemmilments
Commitments for minimum lease payments inrefaticn to rendal commitments contracted lor af the repening dale and not
recognised as linbiities, payable:

2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
500D $000 5000 5000
Not later than one year 19,577 19,888 :
Laler than one year byl not iater than five years 36,793 45,530
Laten “han five years e 38,159 LTS R
Commitinenis not recognised in the financial statements 76,525 93,605
Reprecenting.
Canceliable operating leases 2,842 1,802 -
. agllpbls eporato oo o 2 73083 R S - S .
Comeriiments nout recognised in the inancial statements 75,525 23,603 -
2094 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
FA HE] SQ00 $'000 £'000
{b}  Maslhead commitments
Not later than one year 22,600 29,400
Later than ong vear but not later than five years 90,400 117,600

Tolal masthead commitmenis 135,600 205,800 -

The Masthaad License Agreement with Wilson & Horon Finance Pty Limiled (N2 Branch) reguirey an annusl review be performed
{o determing the masthead royalty payments for the foliowing yeor. As such, the maslhead commitmenls disciosed in the above
1able may vary.

2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
000 3000 $'000 'CoN

{c}  Capital commitments
Capital expendilure coniracled for al balance date but not recognized g5 | abilities:

e

Big et baler ot pig year

Totat capitel commitmeants 440 -
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

20, INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(2) Material subsidiaries with non-controlling interests

Set out below are the Group's materal subsidiasies wilh non-controling interests al 31 December 2014, Unless othervise stated, the
subsidiades as listed befow have share capilal consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held direclfy by the Group, and the

proporiion of ownership interests held eguals 1o the vofing rights held by the Group.

Name of entity Place of Country of  Ownership interest
business  incorporation hweld by the group

2014
Austrzliz and
Auslralizn Radio Network Pty Lid M New Zealand Austrafia 59%

# The Australian Radio Nebvori owas 100%% of NZME. Radic Limilad

{b} Non-controlling interests (NCH

Ownership Principat
interest held by activities
non-controling

interests
2614 2013

% 50%  Commercial radio

Sel oul below is the summarised finenciat information for the subsidiary  The amounts disclesed for each subsidiary are before inter-

company eliminations,

Australion Radio Nebwork Pty Lid

Summarised balance sheet 2014 2013

5'000 S'000
Current assets 472,510 158,708
Curment llabilities 47,847 41,062
Current net asseis 124,963 147 643
Non-currenl assets 620,095 566,697
Mon-current lighiliies 35,884 214 484
Non-current net assels 584,211 545213
Net assets 709,174 692,866
Accumulated NCL 187,506 264,844
Summarizsed stotement of comprehenslve income 204 2013

£'000 5000
Revenue 326,572 302,906
Profit for the period 62,038 56,794
Other comprehensive income 5,084 33,187
Tolal comprehensive income 67,122 89,981
NCI wilhin ke ARN Group ¥ 4,294 2,464
Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI 198,732 47,455
Dividends paid to NC| 17,600 22087
¥ ARN hiarg & controling 30% interest in Brisbane FM Radio Ply Lid

32




YILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

20, INTERESTS 1N OTHER ENTITIES {continued)

Summarised cash flows Auvstralizn Radio Helwork Pty Lid
2014 2013
$oon $'000

Cash flows from operating aclivities 70,698 59,986

Cash flows from investing aclvities {13,856) (8,579)

Cash flows from financing acliviies [CEREEH PNV Ny

Net increase in cash andd cosh equivalents 3,309 4,055

(¢} Transactions with non-controlling Interesis

In February 2014, APN News & Media Limited the ultimate parent through ils subsidiary, Tibbar Broadcasting Ply Limited (Tibbar),
acquired the 50% of Australian Radio Network {ARN) and the Ragio Metwork (TRN) thal it did not already own This ransaction was
freated as a ransaction with a non-controfling interest as the ARN News & Media Limitad Group previously contsolied and
consolidated ARM and TRN.

This acquisilion was funded in part by Tibbar issuing a debardure {o the Leve! 3 Parinarship, a subsidiary of Wilson & Horon Limited

The investment in Lhe debenture provides Wilson & Horton Limited with an addilional 28.8% economic inferes! in ARN and TRN. The
Investment in the debanture by Level 3 Pannership has been ireated as a transaclion with 2 non-controlling interest The
cansideration paid was A$140,081,000 (NZ5151,288,000}. The carrying emount of the nos-contzoiing interests in ARN on the date of
the transaction was $305,364,000, The carrying value of the 26 8% non.contreiling interest on the date of the transaction was
5163.675,000. The Group recagnised a decrease in non-controliing interests of 163,675,000 and an increase in equily attdbutabie to
owners of (he parent of §14.732,000. Upen ARN joining the ullimate parent Australian 1ax consolidaled group, ARN recagnised a
deferred tax liability of §14,0935,000, which has been expensed i0 the curren; year,




WHLSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

21, RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
£'008 $'000 £000 $'600
Total remuneration for Directors and cther key management personnel
Short term benefits 4,418 2,969
Post-employment benefils 166 76
Termination benefits 2,087 564
Share-teged parmcnis e 569 .
7,241 3.609 .

Wilson & Horon Limited 5 g wholly owned subsidiary of Australian Provincial Newspapers inlermational Pty Lid, a company
incarporated in Australia  Its ultmate parent company is APN News & Media Limited, a company Incorporated in Austratia

The Group charged interest of $6,867 646 {2013: $19,614,000) to Biffin Ply Ltd 2 member of the APN News & Media Limited
Group. Biffin Pty Ltd charged management lees 1o APN Holdings NZ Limiled of 33,447,000 {2013 $3,585.000). A group comparny,
APN Heldings N2 Limited charged shared services fees folafling $2,266.000 {2013: $4,079,311) lo refaled parties. The Group
putchased prinl services worth $8,569 000 {2013: $1,358,000) from Beacon Prnt Ltd, a eompany in which the Group holds an
interest in. The Group settled Joans of $5,783,000 to NZME Educallonal Media (NZ) Lto in the paricd (2013:8nil}

Wilsan & Hodon Limited had issued mandatory convertitle notes to Marnin Lid, an enlily cordrolled by the Group's ulfimate parent
company [refer o note 14), Wilson & Herlen Limited has made tolal payments of 31,560,000 during the 2014 year (2613
£31,560,000). Using the effective interest method, these payments have been classified as inlerest of $1,689,000 (2013:
$3,800,000) ard printipai repayments of $29,870,000 (2013: $27,751,000} The note converted 1o ordinary shares on 20
Decembar 2014 (refer o note 14} 20d $nlf was outstanding at balance dzle (2013 $29.870,000). Wilson & Horton Lid charged
certain subsidiaty companies inleres! istatling $6,488,00C in the 2014 year {2013:$5,605,000).

Biffin Pty LId repaid icans of $236,232.656 (2013 $25.916,277) 1o group companies and borrowed $53,278,00¢
(20113:$10,613,000) from group companies |Lwas charged inlerest of $6,901,000 from group companies

Wilson & Horten Finance Pty Lid. New Zealand Branch, charged royalty fees of $28,739.000 {2013: $30.213,000), advanced
522,565,000 (2¢13: $15,150,000), repaid loans of $3,036,000 (2013: $13.693.000) and charged interest of $4.651,008 {2013
£3,389,000) to the Group. The Group charged Wilsen & Horton Finance Pty Lid. New Zealand Branch, office renlal and service
fess of $168,000 (2013; $168,000). Group entities ofiset tax losses for consideration of $3.715,000 (2013: $2,228.000) veilh ather

APN Group companies

Groug 2014 2013 2014 2013

Receivables  Receivables  Payables Fayables
$'000 S0Ge $°000 5000

Balances with relaled parnty

Biffin Pty Limited 105,887 282,149 21,702 12,008

Media Tek Pty Limited 50,782 51,544 1,048 1.084

APN MNewspapers Fty Limited 95,311 45,304 220 227

MNZME. Educational Madia Limiled {formerly APN Educational Med:a

{NZ ) Limited) 2 3,407 ASD 9,337

Wilson & Horlon Finance Ply Limited ~ New Zealand Branch . 129,545 106,356

AFN News & Media Limile . 47,608 34,786

fmgrrelmedpodvbdaniy W £ 4565 5512

Total related party receivables snd payables 252,484 382,388 205,138 67,317

Parem 214 2013 2014 2013
Receivables Receivables  Payables Payables

$°000 $'000 $'000 5'000

Balances with relaied pany

giffin Pty Limited . 722 6a7

APN Holdings N2 Limited 353,913 428,074 806,542 854,471

APN New Zealand Limited 92,03% 92,038 .

APN Specialist Publications NZ Limiled 69,637 567,947

aner reloed potlvy balaages ~ o 2 &z & 0

Total reated party receivablies and payables 515,622 588,537 807,273 855,178
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

22, CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Group Parent Parent
5000 060 $'000 5000
Reconciliation of ¢cash
Cash at end of the vear, as shown in the slatemants of cash flows,
compfises:
Cash and cazh equva ents 18,367 G257 189 ‘
Reconciliation of nel cash inflows (outfiows) from operating activides
to profit! (Joss) for the year:
Profit/ (loss) for the year 51,130 58,000 4,742 (54.056)
Depreciation and amortisalion expense 24,542 24,266
Bomowing cosl amortisation 3,256 2.024 691 022
Net gam on sale of non-current assets {3,189) {88 :
Change in current / deferred {ax payable 22,000 {10,126) 12,205 5,188
Foreign exchenge ipsses { (gains} 1,858 (8456} 444
Asset wrile offs and business closure 1,696
Amounls crediled lo provision against assels .
Revaluationfimpairment of financia! assets {4,326} .
Revaluationfimpairment of invesiment in subsidiary . (28,719} 28,719
Change in fair value of financial instrument (20,531) 3,787 :
Impairment of intangible assels 7,239
Reversal of contingent consideration provision 2,608
Changes In assels and liabiliies net of effect of acquisitions
Tride and other raceivables {5,875}
Inveniories 783

Prepayments 413
T W Gavalngs il @mnids Benclis [ ¢y 4 K

Nat cash inflows{oulflows) from operating activities 75,780 92,031 (19,637) {1,039

Financo facilities
Details of credil standoy arrargements and loan facifities are ingluded in note 24
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WILESOR & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

23. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

2014 2013 2014 2013
Group Graup Parent Parenl
$'000 F000 $000 $°000
{i} Remuncration for audif or review of the financial reports
PricewaterhouseCoopers — New Zealsnd firm 372 376
Other firms 152 349
(i} Remuneration for other assurance services
PricewalerhouseCoopers — New Zealand firm 138 i8
PricewalerhouseCoopers —~ overseas fium LiE]
b D S 1 _ 25 e
Totzl pudit and other assurance services 659 e - B
(i) Remuneration for other services
PrcewaterhouseCoaopers ~ New Zealand firm
Tax. Senvices
s Transaclional advice 1,042 184
= Gomplionce 185 139
PricewaterhouseCoopers ~ overseas firms
Tax Services
o+ Consuiling and advice 1.167
»  Olrer advisory sorvices 32 G0
Other firms
Tax Services
+ Transactional advice . 22
+« Compliance 86 106
Lo B edvivory gereces e 3802 -
Total nen-audit services 6,324 511 -
24, BSTANDBY ARRANGEMENTS AND CREDIT FACILITIES
2014 2013 2014 2093
Group Group Parent Farent
$'000 006 $'000 000
Entities in the Group have access (o
Dverdraft facitities
Unsecured bank overdrafl facility otalling 5,086 (3,168
Lot of gradnlileeg o e i
Amount of available credh 5086 9,168 -
Loan facilities
Secured bank loan facitity iotalling 240,800 340,600
Unsecured bank loan faciity lotalling . 248485 238,485
New Zeafand Bonds 100,000 -
Amount of locidly wlsised —— 220,008) 1230 B41) {220,600y (130841
Arount of avallable facility 124,600 107,644 120,600 107,644
Loan facilities as af 31 December 2014 includes $nd for letters of credit (2013: §31,470.000)
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WILSON & HORTOM LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the vear ended 31 Decermnber 2014

25 FINAHCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to & variety of financial nsks: market nsk {ingluding foreign exchange risk, inferest ale rsk ang price
risk}, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and sceks 1o minimise polential adverse effects an the financial performance of the Group. The Group uses differenl
mathods to measure different types of risk to which it Is exposed. These methods include sensitivily analysis in the case of inlerest
rate and foreign exchange and sgeing analysis for credit rigk

Other than as set oul befow in refation to interest rate nsk and cradit 1isk, the Parent is not direclly exposed o any significant financial
tigk,

Risk ntanagement is catriad oul by a central Treasusy Function under policies approved by the Board of Direclors. The policies
provide principles for overall sk management, as well as arsas covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, inlarest rale
risk, credit dsk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative fnancial instrumenis, and investmen! of excess Hquidity.

{a) Market risk

(i} Cash flow and lair value inferes! raia risk
The Group and Parentl's main interes! rale risk arnises from long-term borrowings. Berrowings issued at variabla rales expose the
Group to cash fow inlerest rale risk. Borrowings issued at Gxed interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Group

policy is to maintain 2 mix of fred and variable rate borrowings

Based on the cutstanding net flosting debd at 31 December 2014, a change in interest rates of +/-1% per annum with all other
variatias being tonslani would impact post-fax profit and equity by 51.5 million lowerfigher {2013 8C § million lowarhigher),

(i) Forsign exchange risk
Foreign exchange nsk arises from future commerciaf transactions and recognised assets and labiliies that are denominatad in s

cuerency that is not tha entity's functionat currency.

Whrilst the Group a3 a whole has assets and liabilities in muttiple currensies, individua! enliies in the Group do nat have z significant
foresign exehange exposure fo receivables or payables in currencies that are not their functional currency

(i) Price risk

The Group is not exposed {o significant price risk. There s some risk associated with other finzncial assets however this is not
deemed to be significant as other financial assels are calegorised as lovel 3 in the fair value hierarchy and have been impatrad,
where applicable, to the prasent value of expecied future cash flows

{b} Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit risk arizes from cash and cash eouivalents and deposits with barks and financisl
institutions, 85 well as credil axposures 1o wholesale and retall customers, including cutstanding receivabies and committed
ransactions. For banks and financlal instilutions, the creditworthiness is assessed prior lo enterng into arrangements and approved
by the Boarg. For other customers, nisk control assesses tha eredit quallly, 1aking into account financial position, past experience and
other factors. The utilisation of sredn limits 15 requiarly moniorad,

The Parent has credil risk associated with the receivable balances from olher group entilies and the maximum exposure to credil risk
Is the tolai of the related party receivables

Credit nisk further arises in relation to financial guaraniees given to certain parlies (see note 18 for details).

37




WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 Decembper 2014

25, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {conilnued}

(¢} Liguichity risk

Pradent hquidity risk management implies maintalning sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availabifily of funding through an
adequate amount of commitied credit facilities and the abiity to close oul market positions. Due 1o the dynamic nature of the

underlying business, Group Treasury aims at maintaining fiexibility in funding by keeping commitied credit lines avallable

Mahagement monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve on the basis of expecled cash fliows,

The tables balow analyse the Group's financial labilities inciuding Interes! 1o maturity into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining pericd al the reporting date to the conlractual maturity date The amounts disclosed in the abtes are the conlraciual

undiscounted cash fiows.

Less than one Belwewn one Between two  Owver five
31 December 20174 year  and two years and five years years
$'000 5000 $000 §'000
Trade pavables 75,050
Bank lopns 13,444 13,444 234,522
Felsted perty leans e 123,442 Lan :
Gross liability 281.938 14,754 234,622
Lesginteeet e CAVABEL: (154970 [RER G .
Principal 268,250 1,257 220,600 .
Less thar: one Belween one Betweentwo  Over five
31 Decermnber 20143 year  and two years and five years years
3030 S000 5000 000
Trade payahles 75,376 .
Bank loans 3,594 71,516
Mandalory convertibie noles 31.560
New Zealand Bonds 7.860 7.860 101,265
_Ralpeg pe; e e LR | EEE b -
Grass liability 287,672 81,341 -
Lesgimmrest e EmERA nIm : -
Principal 274,108 71,222 101,287 .

26. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's chjeclive when managing capital is 1o sateguard ils abidily to continue as a going concern, so that the Group can
conlinue to pravide returns for sharehclders ang banefits for other stakehoiders and to maintain an optimal capilal structure to reduce

ihe cost of capital

in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to sharehafders, Issue new shares or Sell assels lo reduce cebl
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WILEON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group measures and recognises the fallowing assets and iHabilides af fair value on a recurring basis'
Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss (FVTPL);

l.and and buiidings.

The Gioup has slso measured assels and labilities at fair value on 2 nan-recuring basis as a result of Ihe reclassification of assets
and liatitilies as held for sale.

{a} Fair value herarchy
IFRS 13 requires disciosure of fair value measurements by leve! of the following falr value measurement hicrarchy:

- Quated prices {unadjustsd) in active markets for ientical assets or habilities (level 1)
- inpuis clher than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset ot liabiiity, either directly or indirecty {level 2),2nd
~ inputs for Ine assel or liabilily that are net based on observable market data (unohservable inputs) {level 3).

{bj Recognised foir value measdarements
The following tzble presents the Group's financial assets and liabifities measured and recognised ot fair value al 31 December 2014
Comparative mformation for non-financial assets ond liabilities has not been provided as permitted by the transilional provisions of the

new rules

31 December 2014 Motas Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SO0 LS SOLE E006

Reoprring oy volue messurements

Financial ascots
Financial assels al fair vélue through profit and loss

Shares in other cormpanies 9

1 ST ST il

Tetat financial assets 132,378
Ran-Tinancial sezels

Land and buildings

tand 16 . 3,165 3,106
i . 16 . .

Totzl assets
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VILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the vear ended 31 December 2014

27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS {continued)

31 December 2013 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5000 §'000 5000 §'000

Recurripg fafr valua meaguroments

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value threugh profit and loss

Shares in other companies g - . 25,012 25,012
Financial instrument e - . 86,879 86,873
Total financial assets - 111,691 111,891

Men-financial assets
Land and bullfings

Land 10 . - 5410 5,418
Buildings 10 . - 2,176 2176
Total assets - 7.585 7,685

Non-recurring fair value measurements

Asseals hald for sale & - 758 788
Total non-recurting assets - 788 788
Liabilitips diroclly associated with assels held for sale & . . 3,132 3,132

- 3,132 3,132

Total non-fecurring liabilities

The parent entity holds no assels or fizbilities measured and recognised al fair value.
There were ne transfers between levels for recurring fair valug measurements during the year.

The Group's policy is 1o recognise transfers betwean fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

{c} Disclosed fair values

The Group also has a number of assets and liabililies which are nol measured at fair value but for which fair values ara disclosed in
thase notes.

The carrying amounts of tzade receivablas and payables are assumed to approximate thair fair values due to thalr short-lerm natura,
There ara no outstanding non-current recelvables as ot 31 Dacember 2014 (level 3).

The fair value of non-current borrowings disclosed in note 14 is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
currant market interest rates that are available to the group for similar financial instruments. For the pericd ending 31 December 2014,
the borrowing rates were determined 1o be between 5.7% and $1.0%, depending on the fype of borrowing, The falr value of current
borrowings approximates the carrying amount, as tha impact of discounting s not significant (level 2).

(d) Valuation technigues used to derive level 2 and 3 fair values

Recurring fair value measurements

The fair value of firancial instruments that are not raded In an active market is determined using valuation technigues. These
valuation techniques maximise {he use of ohservable market data where il is available and rely as litie a5 possible on entlly specific
astimates. Il all significant inputs required to fair value an Instrument ate observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If ane or more of the signHicant inputs is rot based on observable market data, the instrument is included in lovel 3, This is the case
for shares in olher companies.

Specific valuation lechnigues used to value financial instruments include:
The use of quoled market prices or dealer quotes for simitar instruments, and
Other techniques, such as discountad cash flow analysis, arg used o determine fair vatue for tre remaining financial

instruments.
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WILSON & HORTON LIBITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2014

27, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The Group cbiains independent valuations at lpasl every three yoars for its freshold land and buildings {classified as property, plam
and equipment}, jess subsequent depreciation for buldings. This is considered sufficient regularily (o ensure thaf Ihey carrying
ameunt does nol differ materially from that which would be delermined using fair value af the end of the reporting pedcd. All resuliing

fair value estimates for properties are included as Level 3.

Non-racurring fair value measuremonts

Asszis classified as held for sale dunng the reporing periad were measured at the fower of ils carrying amount and fair value less

cusl lo sell &t the trae of the reclassification. The fair value wes determined in reference to cusrent market offers

{e) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable Inputs (feve( 3)

The following lable presents the changes in level 3 items for the pericds ended 31 December 2014 and 2012 for ragurring fair value

measuraments:
Sharags in other Financiat Lany Bulidings Total
corporations instrument
5060 SO0 s'080 Q00 §'000
Opening balance 1 January 2013 27,543 108,534 137,077
Adoption of NZ IFRS 13 - 5,918 3,582 5,485
Arquisitions ~ 122 122
Dispossls and other lransfers (420) (1,154} {1,574}
DCeprecistion {308) (308}
Change in {air value (3,787} (3,767}
Exchange losses recognised 0 dther {34489} {18,868) {22,357)
comprehensive income
Gaing recognised in ofher income* ash {14} {86} gi8
Clesing balance 31 Decomber 2013 25812 86,6748 5419 2470 113,486
Acquistions [0 &6
Disposals and glhes franslers 2,264} (2,289} (840) (5,403
Dapreciation (231} {231)
Change in fair value - 20,831 . 20,551
Exchange lnsses ipononised i oihe: (84971) {2,681 13,5881)
C[kmp:’i}h-‘fnSFH—_’!H HIE:
Gaing recagneod i other inesms 57493 [if {143 5,764
GCinzing balance 31 Decomber 2044 Z7.650 108,720 3,108 1,137 36,637

* Unrealised gains or {losses) recognisad in profil or Ioss atiributable 1o assets held at the end of the reporting period (included in

gains/{tosses) tecognised in olther income ahove}

I

2014

SEil Gh0

There were ne changas in valuation lechnique during the year
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WILSON & HORTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2014

27, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS {continuad)

(]} Fair value measuraments using significant unehservable inputs {level 3)

Valuation inpuls znd relationships to fair value

]

The foliowing table summarises the quantilative informalion about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements, See (d) above for the valuation lechnigues adopted

Falr value a5 Range of Inputs
21 31 Dac {prohability-
2014 valuation Unobservable weighted Relationship of uncbservable inputs W
Deseription §’00¢| rechnique inputs average) fair value
Shares in Gther 23,281 Discounied Cash flow growih | Between -6.0% Incraasing cash growlh tactor by 50 basis
corporations cash Nows factor and +10.5 % points and loweting distount rate by 100
{+1.4%%} basis points would increase the FV by
53 8m Lowering cash growth factor by 80
basis points and raising lhe discount rale
Fish - agjusiad A% i:y;ri\?;ub;g]'sf;g:: would desrease the
diseounl rate : 20y e
4,350} Capilalisation | EBITDA mulliples | Between 3.5n and} The higher the capilalisation mulliple the
muitiple 5 8% {3 by higher the valuc.
Financlat 104,720! Discounted Cash ficw growth | Betwesn -25.8% | Increasing cash growth factor by 100 basis
instrument cash fiows facior and 1.5% (8.3%) | points and lowering discount rale by 100
basis poinis would increase the FV by
58.8m. Lowering cash growth facior by
. - 100 hasis paints and raising the discount
Risk - adjusted 10% rale by 100 basis points would decrease
discount rale the FV by $7 tin
132,370

{ii}  Valuation processes

The finance depsrirnent of the Group parforms the valuations of non-properly tems required for financiat reporting purpeses,

incluting level 3 falr va'ues, This depariment reponts direclly 10 the APN Group's Chief Financial Officer and Lhe Audil Commiites
Discussions of valuation processes and resulls are hetd between the Chief Financiat Officer, the Audit Commillee and (he finance
team at least once every six months, inling with the Group’s hall-yearly reporling dates.

The Group engages external, independent, qualified vakers to delermine the fair value of the Group's land and buildings ol least

every thre yoars

The level 3 inpuls used by the Group are derlvad and evalualed a follows:
»  The value of shares is other corporations 2nd financial instiument — discount rates. forecasted cashflows, EBITDA mulkpiss
estimalad by management based on ¢ommparabie ransaclions and industry dala.

28, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Since the end of the financial year, the Group has acguired 100% of Radia 96FM Perth Ply Limited (96FM) from Fairfax Media The
purchase was A$78.0 millen and was funded from cash and existing debl facilitics 96FM's revenue for the 12 months to 31

December 2014 was AS18.7m.

I July 2015, the APN News & Media Limited Group completed {ne refinancing of its debt faciities with a syncicate of domestic arg

ternational banks  The facility matures in June 20149

Other than the matter descrived above. the Direclors are not aware of any matier or circunsiance thal bas arisen since the end of the
financial year ihal has significantiy affected or may significanlly afiect the Group's operations. the results of those operations or the

Group's slate of affgirs in fulure financial years.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the shareholders of Wilson & Horton Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Wilson & Horton Limited (“the Company”) on pages 3 to
42, which comprise the balance sheets as at 31 December 2014, the income statements, statements of
comprehensive income and statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year
then ended, and the notes to the financial statements that include a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information for both the Company and the Group. The Group
comprises the Company and the entities it controlled at 31 December 2014 or from time to time during
the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and that give a true and fair view of the matters
to which they relate and for such internal controls as the Directors determine are necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand
Or eITor,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) and
International Standards on Auditing. These standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider the internal controls relevant to the
Company and the Group’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
matters to which they relate, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company
and the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

We are independent of the Group. Our firm carries out other services for the Group in the areas of
taxation and other assurance and advisory services The provision of these other services has not
impaired our independence.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 02162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 (9) 355 8000, F: +64 (9) 355 8001, www.pwe.com/nz
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Independent Auditors’ Report
Wilson & Horton Limited

Opinion
In our opinion, the finaneial statements on pages 3 to 42:

(i) comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and
(ii) comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

(iii)  give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2014, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We also report in accordance with Sections 16(1}{(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial Reporting Act 1993,
In relation to our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and

(ii) in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as
appears from an examination of those records.

Restriction on Use of our Report

‘This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with the
Companies Act 1g93. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
shareholders those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholders, as a body, for our audit work, for
this report or for the opinions we have formed.

i f K .
oy s o

Chartered Accountants Auckland
12 August 2015



